
          
 
 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Neil Belenkie will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, October 28, 2019 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, October 28, 2019 be approved 

as circulated. 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, September 30, 2019 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held September 30, 2019 be 

adopted. 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Ivano Cecchini, Executive Director, Facilities & Planning Services, Kerri Palmer 
 Isaak, Trustee & Chair, Green School Committee and Barb Hobson, Board Chair, 
 School District No. 43 (Coquitlam) Board of Education, presentation regarding the 
 Green School Initiative 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting, report dated October 28, 2019 regarding 2019 

Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report 
 Recommendation: 
 That the “2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report”, be received for 
 information; and 
 That the expenditure exceptions to Policy 195 Financial Plan-Amendment, 
 Monitoring & Control, as detailed in the section in this Report titled “Compliance 
 with Policy 195”, be approved. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
October 28, 2019 

7:00 PM 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  October 28, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019 10 28 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Community 
Wildfire Protection Plan and Fuel Management Prescription 

 Recommendation: 
That staff be directed to submit an application to the 2020 Community Resiliency 
Investment Program for funding to update the Village’s Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan; and  
That the Village of Belcarra’s willingness to provide overall grant management be 
hereby confirmed. 

5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated October 28, 2019 
regarding Short Term Rentals (STR) Implementation Options 
Recommendation: 

 That Council direct staff to proceed with Implementation of Option 2 for Short 
 Term Rentals (STR). 
5.4  Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated October 28, 2019 regarding 

Potential Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) Engagement Summary Report 
 Recommendation: 
 That the Potential Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) Engagement Summary 

Report dated October 28, 2019 be received for information. 
 Alternate Recommendation: 
 That the Implementation of a Designated Anchorage Area in Bedwell Bay be 

forwarded to 2020 Budget Discussions for consideration. 
5.5 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated October 28, 2019 regarding 

Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department Request for Belcarra Cargo Trailer 
 Recommendation: 
 That the report dated October 28, 2019, regarding the Sasamat Volunteer Fire 
 Department (SVFD) request for the donation of the Cargo Trailer be received for 
 information; and 
 That discussions continue with SVFD regarding this request.   
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
7. BYLAWS 
 No items. 
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 
 That correspondence item 8.1 to 8.11 be received. 

 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  October 28, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019 10 28 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

ACTION ITEMS 
8.1 Honourable Katrine Conroy, Minister of Children and Family, letter dated   

October 2, 2019 regarding the declaration of October 2019 as “Foster Family 
Month” in British Columbia 
Recommendation: 
That October 2019 be declared as “Foster Family Month” in the Village of 
Belcarra 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.2 Rhonda Vanderfluit, Registrar, Youth Parliament of BC, Alumni Society, letter 
 dated September 12, 2019 regarding British Columbia Youth Parliament, 91st 
 Parliament (full report available in the Village office) 
8.3 Peter Clark, Belcarra Resident, letter received October 2, 2019 regarding 
 Revenue Generation Committee Recommendation on Sale of the Road End 
 at Whiskey Cove Lane 
8.4 Kim Harris, Belcarra Resident, letter dated October 3, 2019 regarding 
 Subdivision of Property Beside Her House 
8.5 Council Committee Meeting Minutes: 

a) Revenue Generation Committee – September 17, 2019 
b) Tree Committee – July 17, 2019 

8.6 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes of  
September 19, 2019 

8.7 Tony S.C. Lee, Senior Manager, Real Estate Services, Properties, BC Hydro, 
letter dated October 8, 2019 regarding BC Hydro Support for the Creation of 
Road Parallel to Existing BC Hydro’s Distribution Line   

8.8 Susan Chalmers, Community Energy Coordinator, Community Energy 
Association, letter dated October 9, 2019 regarding Climate Leaders Institute 
Conference, November 7 – 8, 2019 

8.9 Sandy Stokes, Corporate Officer, Village of Pouce Coupe, letter dated         
October 10, 2019 regarding Support for the City of Enderby Motion regarding 
Fostering Transportation Network Services in Small Communities 

8.10  Kailah Knittle, Manager of Communications & Events, Eagle Ridge Hospital 
Foundation, dated October 10, 2019 regarding Thank You for Your Generous 
Silent Auction Contribution to the Eagle Ridge Hospital Foundation Evening of 
Caring 

8.11 Jack Froese, Mayor, Township of Langley, letter dated October 16, 2019 regarding 
Inter Municipal Ride – Hailing Business Licence 

 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  October 28, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019 10 28 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the October 28, 2019 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



             
 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held September 30, 2019 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 
 
Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
Council Absent 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer  
Paula Richardson, Administrative Services Assistant 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Belenkie called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, September 30, 2019 

Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the Agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, September 30, 2019 be amended by 

adding: 
Item 8.4   Ralph Drew, Belcarra Resident, letter dated September 28, 2019 regarding 

Revenue Generating Committee recommendation to sell water front road 
allowances 

 And be adopted as amended.   
CARRIED 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Public Hearing Minutes, September 9, 2019 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the minutes from the Public Hearing held September 9, 2019 be adopted. 

CARRIED 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 September 30, 2019 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1

prichardson
Typewritten Text



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 30, 2019 

Page 2 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Minutes\Minutes 2019\2019 09 30 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

3.2 Regular Council Meeting, September 9, 2019 
Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 

 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held September 9, 2019 be 
adopted. 

CARRIED 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Revenue Generation Committee regarding an Interim Report, dated September 30, 2019 
 on Road Ends, Policy & Actions 
 Mayor Belenkie invited the Revenue Generation Committee to make their presentation. 
 Chair Tom Kim and Vice-Chair Sharilyn Sweet provided a PowerPoint presentation on 
 the Revenue Generation Committee (RGC) Interim Report dated September 30, 2019 
 on Road Ends, Policy & Actions noting that there is potential revenue of $8 million for 
 the development of 7 Road Ends (RE’s). Clarification would be required regarding 
 certain items. The initial 7 RE’s (3 Waterfront Sites & 4 Upland Sites) were chosen 
 based on various criteria listed. 
 Mayor Belenkie noted that although Councillor Clark was a property owner adjacent to 
 one of the Road Ends under discussion, it was not a conflict of interest at this time as 
 the presentation is for Council information. No decisions are being made at this time. 
 Discussion ensued with regard to encroachments, smaller lot sizes, Official Community 
 Plan amendments and public access. Council asked pertinent questions.  
 Mayor Belenkie invited the gallery to ask questions of the RGC. Residents queried with 
 regard to:  

• Loss of viewscapes, which would result in a loss of property value 
• The definition of a Road End 
• Land Title requirements 
• Road Ends that should be retained for roads for safety purposes 
• Legislation regarding Crown Land  

 Chair Kim noted that there are other options for Revenue Generation to which the 
 committee will continue to research.  
 Mayor Belenkie thanked the RGC for their report and noted that next steps would 
 include public consultation on the sale of Road Ends. 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the following motion be tabled until after Agenda Item 4.2 

CARRIED 
“That Council direct staff to prepare a report regarding a Bylaw and / or policy,   
and required actions to develop and sell Road Ends as a Revenue Generation 
opportunity; and 
And if validated, that the report include a recommendation for an amendment to 
the Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011 as required.” 
  



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 30, 2019 

Page 3 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Minutes\Minutes 2019\2019 09 30 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

4.2 David Goodman, Belcarra Resident, letter dated September 25, 2019 regarding the 
 Revenue Generation Committee Interim Report with regard to the sale of Road Ends 
 David Goodman outlined his letter regarding the Revenue Generation Committee  
 Interim Report with regard to the sale of Road Ends in the Village.   
 Discussion ensued with Council asking pertinent questions. 

Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That Council direct staff to prepare a report regarding a Bylaw and / or policy, and 
 required actions to develop and sell Road Ends as a Revenue Generation     
 opportunity; and 

And if validated, that the report include a recommendation for an amendment to the 
Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011 as required.  

CARRIED 
4.3 Lynnda Savage, Belcarra Resident, regarding Parking on Marine Avenue with 
 regard to Parking on Pavement and Signage 
 Lynnda Savage addressed Council regarding Parking on Marine Avenue. She noted 
 her concerns on parking issues and queried whether Council will review Parking Bylaw 
 Enforcement in the Village. 
 Discussion ensued. Mayor Belenkie noted that a full review on Parking will be taking 
 place. Council thanked L. Savage for her feedback. 
5. REPORTS 
 No items. 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
 UBCM  
 Mayor Belenkie outlined his attendance at the UBCM. He discussed the Official 
 Community Plan amendment with Bowen Island Council. Mayor Belenkie and               
 L. Dysart met with BC Hydro to discuss the proposed North South Connector. 
 L. Dysart noted that the UBCM conference is an opportunity to meet with Councils   
 and CAO’s from all over the province to learn about the issues they are facing and the 
 successes in their municipalities. 
 Councillor Clark commented on the opportunity to vote on UBCM resolutions and the 
 value of connections made with other small municipalities and learning of their individual 
 challenges. 
 Superintendent of Public Works 
 Mayor Belenkie noted that the Village has eliminated the Superintendent of Public 
 Works position. A new position is being created.  

7. BYLAWS 
 No items. 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 30, 2019 

Page 4 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Minutes\Minutes 2019\2019 09 30 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.4 be received. 

 CARRIED 
ACTION ITEMS 

8.1 Agnes Jackman, Board Member, Council of Senior Citizens Organizations of BC, 
 letter dated September 5, 2019 regarding Observation of the UN International Day of 
 Older Persons – October 1, 2019 

Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

 That October 1, 2019 be declared as “UN International Day of Older Persons” in the 
 Village of Belcarra 

CARRIED 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.2 Torrance Coste, National Campaign Director, Wilderness Committee, letter dated 
 September 12, 2019 regarding “Now’s Our Chance to Protect Ancient Forests”         
 (full report available at the Village Office) 
8.3 Council Committee Meeting Minutes: 

a) Revenue Generation Committee Meeting Minutes – June 25, 2019 
 

8.4   Ralph Drew, Belcarra Resident, letter dated September 28, 2019 regarding Revenue 
Generating Committee recommendation to sell water front road allowances 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 No items. 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 Peter Clark, 5057 Whiskey Cove Lane, queried with regard to the RGC report on Road 
 Ends and the sale of properties which may cause a loss of viewscapes and the potential 
 for a decrease in property values for residents.  

John Wilms, 4625 Belcarra Bay Road, queried with regard to the purchase of property 
 from Metro Parks for resale to increase the Village tax base. 

Ron Davis, 280 Turtlehead Road, queried with regard to the fire on Elementary Road in 
 Anmore. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 30, 2019 

Page 5 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Minutes\Minutes 2019\2019 09 30 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 

 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That the September 30, 2019 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 8:36 pm. 

CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
    
Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
4.1





  
COUNCIL REPORT 

    
Date:   October 28, 2019  
 
From:  Nancy Gomerich, BBA, CPA-CA, NG Consulting  
 
Subject: 2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report 
 
 
Recommendation: 
That the “2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report”, be received for information; and 
That the expenditure exceptions to Policy 195 Financial Plan-Amendment, Monitoring & 
Control, as detailed in the section in this Report titled “Compliance with Policy 195”, be 
approved. 
 
Purpose: 
To provide a forecast of 2019 revenue and expenses and analysis of related budget 
variances. 
 
Background: 
A requirement of Financial Policy 195 Financial Plan-Amendment, Monitoring & Control 
is the preparation of a mid year and third quarter report that compares budgeted 
revenues and expenses against forecasted actuals.  In 2019 the mid year report was 
not completed in order to minimize financial consulting costs. 
 
Discussion: 
Summary 
Fiscal 2019 operations are forecast to result in a surplus of $205,016., as compared to a 
budgeted surplus of $357,299. The annual forecast surplus is 11.06% of 2019 budgeted 
operating expenses. 
 
The annual forecast surplus of $205,016 is a negative variance (i.e. is worse than) 
budget by $152,283 ($205,016 - $357,299).   Summarized by Fund: 
 

 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



Nancy Gomerich, BBA, CPA-CA, NG Consulting  
2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report 
October 28, 2019 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

The variances are due to differences in a number of forecast and budgeted revenues 
and expenses, in a number of areas. 
 
A summary of the most significant variances (from budget) are: 
 
General Fund 

• Significantly lower restricted grants (referred to as “transfers”), specifically: grants 
for the Drainage Project, Bus Stop Improvements, Wildfire Hazard Work and 
Emergency Preparedness where not received. Adjusting for offsetting lower grant 
expenditures (included in Planning expenses), these short-falls more than 
account for the entire General Fund negative budget variance (i.e. the $141,153).  

• Unexpected, higher (by $30,000) Gas Tax/Community Works Fund annual grant. 
• Lower Building Permits (by $20,000) reflecting slowed building activity. 
• Higher Parking Ticket revenue (by $25,000), with the net costs (ticket revenue 

less bylaw costs) producing a small direct “profit” of about $4,500.   
• Higher interest revenue due in part to higher interest rates.  Notably the Villages 

investment in the MFA Bond Fund has returned a 4.38 annualized return (August 
2019 over August 2018).  

• Lower Planning Expenses (due to supporting grants not be approved); and 
 
Water Fund 

• No significant individual variances. 
 
Waste and Recycle Depot (WARD) Fund 

• Higher WARD depot attendant costs (about $4,500) due to worker status change 
from contractor to employee and increased hourly rate.  

• Higher hauling and disposal costs (about $5,000) due to both volume and rates. 
 
As ultimately required, any resulting funding short-falls, will be funded from the 
respective funds surplus balance, which has been built up in prior years due to budget 
surpluses/positive variances. 
 
Refer to the Forecast Statement of Operations and supporting Individual Fund 
Statements, for further details and explanations of variances (Attachments A and B). 
 
Capital Expenditures 
Capital expenditures do not show up on the forecast Statement of Operations as they 
are only expensed when consumed/used (i.e. ultimately they will become amortization 
expense).  Refer to the Forecast Statement of Capital Expenditures for a comparison of 
budgeted and forecast actuals (Attachment C). 
 
Compliance with Policy 195 
Policy 195* provides staff with the ability to manage each Funds operating budget to the 
“bottom-line” (i.e. to budgeted net expenses or revenues), and to exceed project and/or 
capital budgets within specified limitations.  All exceptions to the requirements of Policy 
195 must be approved, ideally in advance, by Council.  



Nancy Gomerich, BBA, CPA-CA, NG Consulting  
2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report 
October 28, 2019 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

 
Required approvals from Council are requested during the year via separate Report(s) 
from staff, or as part of the mid-year and/or third quarter, Financial Forecast Reports. 
 
The requirements of Policy 195 have, or are forecast to be met, with the following 
exceptions: 

• Water Operating Budget – The net operating budget is forecast to be $2,669 
over-budget; the maximum permitted without Council approval is $0. 

• WARD Operating Budget – The net operating budget is forecast to be $8,642 
over-budget; the maximum permitted without Council approval is $0 

• PW Trailer Capital – Project is anticipated to be over-budget by $11,350; the 
maximum permitted without Council approval is $10,000. 

  
Note that although the General Fund is forecast to be over-budget, it is entirely due to 
capital grants which are not included in the “bottom-line” calculation (i.e. once excluded, 
the General Fund is actually forecast to be have a positive budget variance). 
 
* Summary of the main sections of Policy 195, for reference: 

 
Section 1: Operating Budgets 

Actual net expenses (i.e. revenues less expenses) for each Fund (General, 
WARD and Water) will not exceed budgeted net expenses for each Fund.   
Expenses to be funded from reserves or surplus may exceed budget to a 
maximum of the lessor of $10,000 or 20% of the budget value, provided that 
sufficient reserves or surplus is available to fund the additional expense. 

Section 2: Capital Budgets 
Actual capital expenditures for each Fund (General, WARD and Water) will 
not exceed budgeted capital expenditures for each Fund.   
Actual expenditures for each capital project may exceed budget by 
the greater of $10,000 or 20% of the budget value.  
Available budgets are only used to fund new capital projects not contained in 
the approved Financial Plan details, to a value of $15,000 with CAO 
approval, or for values greater than 15,000 with Council approval provided 
the budgeted available funding sources may be used for the new capital 
projects. 
The scope of the capital projects contained in the Financial Plan will not be 
significantly changed. 

 
Attachments: 
 
A – Forecast 2019 Statement of Operations 
B – Forecast 2019 Statement of Operations - Variance Explanations – Individual Funds 
C – Forecast 2019 Statement of Capital Expenditures - Variance Explanations 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

 
ATTACHMENT A – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 
 
See explanation of variances on individual fund Statements (Attachment B). 
 

 
 
 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

 
 
ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – GENERAL FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS 
 

 
  



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – GENERAL FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS  

  



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – GENERAL FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS  

  



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – GENERAL FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS  

  



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – GENERAL FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS  
 

 
  



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – WATER FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS 
 

 
  



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – WATER FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS 
 

  



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – WARD FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS 
 

 
 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.docx 

ATTACHMENT C – 2019 FORECAST STATEMENT OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019 10 28 Short Term Rentals (STR) 
Implementation Options.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: October 28, 2019  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject:  Short Term Rental (STR) Implementation Options 
 
 
Recommendation: 

That Council direct staff to proceed with Implementation of Option 2 for Short Term Rentals (STR). 
 
Purpose: 

To outline options for staff to proceed with regulating Short Term Rentals. The following 2 options are 
presented for Council consideration. 

Option 1: Conduct public engagement to inform of the Village approach to regulating STR. 

Steps for Option 1 include: 
1. Conduct preliminary research into STR policies in comparable BC municipalities 
2. Host a public engagement session (open house) or Council Workshop to hear from Village 

residents about their preferences for regulating STR 
3. Draft policy based on best practices and resident input 

a. Review by lawyer 
4. Present STR Policy to Council for consideration 
5. Staff direction from Council to proceed with Zoning Bylaw Amendments  
6. Zoning Bylaw Amendments: 

a. Amend Zoning Bylaw to include definition for STR 
b. Amend Zoning Bylaw to include STR under the definition of Home-Based Business 
c. Public Hearing to amend Zoning Bylaw 

7. Amend Fees & Charges Bylaw and Business License Bylaw to introduce requirement for 
business license for STR 

 
Option 2: Direct staff to draft a STR policy for Council consideration.  

Steps for Option 2 include: 
1. Conduct preliminary research into STR policies in comparable BC municipalities 
2. Draft policy based on precedent research 

a. Review by lawyer 
3. Present STR Policy to Council for consideration 
4. Staff direction from Council to proceed with Zoning Bylaw Amendments  
5. Zoning Bylaw Amendments: 

a. Amend Zoning Bylaw to include definition for STR 
b. Amend Zoning Bylaw to include STR under the definition of Home-Based Business 
c. Public Hearing to amend Zoning Bylaw 

6. Amend Fees & Charges Bylaw and Business License Bylaw to introduce requirement for 
business license for STR 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3

prichardson
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Potential Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) 
 
Engagement Summary Report 
October 28, 2019 
 

 

 
 
  

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.4



PREFACE 

This independent report of findings was prepared by Lucent Quay Consulting Inc. (Lucent Quay).  

This report presents the findings from the Village of Belcarra Potential Designated Anchorage Area 
engagement from October 3 to October 11, 2019. 

The report summarizes input received at a Public Information Meeting and through feedback questionnaires 
submitted during the engagement period.  

The feedback received reflects the interests and opinions of people who chose to participate in the 
engagement process.  

 

 

 

 



Village of Belcarra – Potential Designated Anchorage Area 
Engagement Summary Report 

 

 Village of Belcarra – Potential Designated Anchorage Area – Engagement Summary Report 
  

  TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1 OVERVIEW...................................................................................................................................... 3 
1.1 ABOUT THE PROPOSED DESIGNATED AREA ................................................................. 3 
1.2 ABOUT THIS REPORT ........................................................................................................ 3 

2 ENGAGEMENT PROCESS ................................................................................................................. 4 
2.1 PURPOSE ............................................................................................................................ 4 
2.2 NOTIFICATION .................................................................................................................... 4 
2.3 ENGAGEMENT METHODS ................................................................................................. 5 

2.3.1 Public Information Meeting........................................................................................... 5 
2.3.2 Feedback Questionnaire .............................................................................................. 5 

2.4 PARTICIPATION .................................................................................................................. 5 
3 SUMMARY OF INPUT ........................................................................................................................ 6 

3.1 KEY THEMES ...................................................................................................................... 6 
3.2 PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETING SUMMARY .................................................................. 7 
3.3 FEEDBACK QUESTIONNAIRE RESULTS........................................................................... 8 

4 NEXT STEPS ................................................................................................................................. 13 
APPENDIX A: NOTIFICATION MATERIALS ...................................................................................... 14 
APPENDIX B: ENGAGEMENT MATERIALS ...................................................................................... 15 
 



 
 

ii Village of Belcarra – Potential Designated Anchorage Area – Engagement Summary   
 

This page is intentionally blank.



Village of Belcarra – Potential Designated Anchorage Area 
Engagement Summary Report 

 

  

 

3 

1 OVERVIEW  

1.1 ABOUT THE PROPOSED DESIGNATED AREA  
The Village of Belcarra Council is considering a License Agreement with the Vancouver Fraser 
Port Authority to establish a Designated Anchorage Area – a geographic area within Bedwell Bay 
where the Village would have authority to manage and control anchored vessels. 

Belcarra currently has no legal responsibility for vessels in Bedwell Bay. Management of Bedwell 
Bay is a federal responsibility. 

Belcarra is considering a Designated Anchor Area in Bedwell Bay to manage overnight use and 
prevent inflow of unlicensed live-aboard and derelict vessels from other areas. The Village is also 
responding to concerns expressed by some residents about noise, pollution, potential crime and 
environmental risk and clean-up costs. 

If the Village were to establish a Designated Anchorage Area, guidelines would need to be 
established for the maximum number of vessels permitted to remain anchored overnight, length 
of stay limits, fees, and collection. The Village would also have to provide appropriate notice and 
be responsible for costs associated with monitoring and enforcement. These guidelines and 
processes may also affect local residents. The Village is committed to the protection of the 
environment and the health and safety for residents and visitors and therefore seeking community 
input regarding this initiative.  

 

1.2 ABOUT THIS REPORT  
Sections 1 and 2 of this report provide the overview and background information for the potential 
Designated Anchorage Area initiative and the engagement process, including notification methods 
and participation levels. Section 3 summarizes comments received at the Public Information 
Meeting and the key findings from the feedback questionnaire responses. Section 4 outlines how 
input will be considered and next steps.  

  



 
 

  
 

4 

 

2 ENGAGEMENT PROCESS  

2.1 PURPOSE 
The purpose of the engagement process was to share information about the potential 
implementation of a Designated Anchorage Area in Bedwell Bay and seek feedback from the 
community on whether the current state of Bedwell Bay warrants the Village assuming the 
responsibility, liability and costs for maintaining a Designated Anchorage Area. The purpose of 
engagement was to gather community input to:  

• Gauge any current challenges or problems related to vessels in Bedwell Bay 
• Gauge perception of changes in the number of boats in Bedwell Bay during peak/off peak 

months 
• Gauge community interest for establishing a DAA 
• Understand opinions related to considerations in developing a DAA 
• Determine level of agreement for implementing a DAA in Bedwell Bay 

 
The public engagement period took place from October 3 to October 11, 2019, and included a 
Public Information Meeting, presentation, information handout and a feedback questionnaire. 
Materials from the Public Information Meeting and the feedback questionnaire were posted to the 
Village of Belcarra website (belcarra.ca) on October 4, 2019. 

This report summarizes input received during the engagement period. 

2.2 NOTIFICATION 
Village of Belcarra invited public participation through a variety of methods identified in the 
following table. Copies of all notification materials are included in Appendix A.  

Form of 
Notification 

Description  Date(s) 

Letter  Delivered 300 letters by mail-drop to residents in the 
community to notify them of the Public Information 
Meeting.  

Sept. 16, 2019 

Email Sent out an email notification to approximately 233 
residents to notify them of the Public Information 
Meeting.  

Sept. 16, 2019 

Poster Distributed seven posters to seven locations to visually 
notify residents passing by of the Public Information 
Meeting. 

Sept. 16, 2019 

Website Posted the public notice for the Public Information 
Meeting on the Village website.    

Sept 16, 2019 

Posted the feedback questionnaire, presentation 
material and information handout on the Village 
website.  

Oct. 4, 2019 

 

https://belcarra.ca/designated-anchorage-area-daa-meeting-information/


Village of Belcarra – Potential Designated Anchorage Area 
Engagement Summary Report 

 

  

 

5 

2.3 ENGAGEMENT METHODS 
2.3.1 Public Information Meeting 

Village of Belcarra Council hosted a Public Information Meeting between 7 p.m. and 9 p.m. on 
Thursday, October 3, 2019 at Belcarra Village Hall. A 20-minute presentation was followed by a 
question and answer period between staff and attendees.  

Attendees were asked to sign-in and were provided with a copy of the feedback questionnaire and 
the information handout about the Designated Anchorage Area, which included a map of the 
potential options. Vancouver Fraser Port Authority representatives were in attendance to answer 
questions about the Designated Anchorage Area Initiative.   

Copies of the presentation material and the information handout are included in  
Appendix B. 

 

2.3.2 Feedback Questionnaire  

A 12-question feedback questionnaire asked participants for their level of agreement for 
implementing the Designated Anchorage Area, to provide comments that influence their opinion 
on the Designated Anchorage Area, any questions or suggestions for Council to consider, and for 
participant demographics. Participants were encouraged to submit the hardcopy feedback forms 
at the end of the Public Information Meeting, but could also submit the questionnaire or comments 
by email to: admin@belcarra.ca, or drop the form off in person at Belcarra Village Hall by  
October 11. A copy of the feedback questionnaire is included in Appendix B.  

 

2.4 PARTICIPATION  

Form of Notification Description  

Public Information Meeting  38 people attended the meeting 

Feedback Questionnaires 22 people completed feedback questionnaires, of which seven 
were completed at the Public Information Meeting and 15 were 
dropped off in-person or emailed to admin@belcarra.ca. 

2 people submitted emails with comments in lieu of the 
questionnaire. Their comments were included in the comment 
theme summary.  

  

mailto:admin@belcarra.ca


 
 

  
 

6 

 

3 SUMMARY OF INPUT  
The following section provides a detailed summary of feedback received through discussion at the 
Public Information Meeting and the feedback questionnaires.  

3.1 KEY THEMES 
The following represents a summary of most commonly mentioned themes for the input sources 
(Public Information Meeting and feedback questionnaires): 

• Mixed responses to perceived changes in the number of vessels in Bedwell Bay between 
summer months and winter months.  

• Requests for Belcarra to clarify the nature of the problem and specific causes, if any to 
warrant a Designated Anchorage Area.    

• A majority of the respondents are not in agreement with the Village implementing a 
Designated Anchorage Area.  

• Factors that influenced respondents’ opinions most included needing to better define the 
issue/problem, concerns related to costs (e.g. implementation, administration, 
maintenance and enforcement) and concerns for the Village taking on the liability and risk 
of a Designated Anchorage Area.  

  



Village of Belcarra – Potential Designated Anchorage Area 
Engagement Summary Report 

 

  

 

7 

3.2 PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETING SUMMARY 
The following themes were captured by staff during the question and answer portion of the Public 
Information Meeting. 

Theme  Comments   

Identifying the problem/issue • Requests for more information about which is the main area of 
concern (Overnight use, derelict vessels or environmental (mainly 
sewage)) 

Costs • Requests for more information about the costs to implement and 
manage the DAA 

• Concerns that the cost to remove derelict vessels and/or those 
washed ashore are prohibitive 

Fees • Requests for more information about a fee structure 
• Questions and concerns related to fee collection 
• Questions regarding fines for non-compliant vessels 

Enforcement • Requests for more information for how the Village would enforce 
the DAA 

• Requests for more information about how the Village would 
establish a new Bylaw for the DAA 

• Questions and concerns for how the Village would allocate 
resources for enforcement (administration/personnel/equipment) 

Insurance • Requests for more information about the extent of area that 
municipal insurance currently covers? 

• Requests for more information whether current municipal 
insurance would extend to the DAA 

• Request for more information about whether Village require 
individual insurance for those using the DAA 

Environmental cleanup / 
sewage pump-out station 

• Comments on sewage being a key concern and one that is 
difficult to pinpoint and to enforce.  

• Suggestions for Belcarra to re-start the Transport Canada 
application process for a sewage pump-out station in Bedwell 
Bay.  

• Request for more information about whether the Village enforce 
stricter rules about dumping sewage without a DAA 

Transport Canada and The 
Wrecked, Abandoned or 
Hazardous Vessels Act 
(WAHVA, Bill C-64) 

• Questions related to how Transport Canada will enforce Bill C-64 
(WAHVA).  

• Requests for more information required for how WAHVA 
regulations could benefit the Village.  

Establishing the Designated 
Anchorage Area 

• Questions about how many spaces/leases would be included in 
DAA 

• Questions about what would be the allowable length of stay? 
• Comments and suggestions for the Village consult with other 

stakeholders in the area 

https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/annualstatutes/2019_1/page-1.html
https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/annualstatutes/2019_1/page-1.html
https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/annualstatutes/2019_1/page-1.html
https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/annualstatutes/2019_1/page-1.html


 
 

  
 

8 

 

3.3 FEEDBACK QUESTIONNAIRE RESULTS 
The following results reflect feedback from the 22 respondents who submitted a feedback 
questionnaire. Where relevant, comments from the two people who submitted an email with 
feedback in lieu of a questionnaire are also reflected. 

1. Level of agreement for implementing a Designated Anchorage Area and level of support 
for a cost recovery fee 

Respondents were asked their level of agreement for implementing a DAA. None agreed with 
implementing a DAA (see Figure 1 below).  

Notwithstanding this response, when asked about support for a cost recovery fee, 27% of 
respondents (6 people) indicated that they would support this fee if a DAA were implemented (see 
Figure 2 below).  

 

     
Figure 1       Figure 2 

  



Village of Belcarra – Potential Designated Anchorage Area 
Engagement Summary Report 

 

  

 

9 

2. Considerations for developing a Designated Anchorage Area 

Respondents were asked to share what factors most influence their opinions in consideration of 
developing the Designated Anchorage Area. Of all the comments received, some respondents 
provided multiple interests in their response. As noted in the graph below, the majority of 
respondents indicated multiple factors. Their interests are related to costs generally, limited 
resources for enforcement and concerns about liability and risk to the Village.  

 

 
            Figure 3 

  



 
 

  
 

10 

 

3. Questions or suggestions for Belcarra Council 

Respondents were asked what questions or suggestions they would like Belcarra Council to 
consider if it were to proceed with developing a Designated Anchorage Area (DAA). All 
respondents provided comments, with some indicating multiple considerations or questions. 
Verbatim responses were summarized into themes. Key themes are noted in the table below.  

Comments/Questions Regarding the Designated Anchorage Area 

Key Themes # of Respondents 

Requests for Council to more clearly define if there is an existing 
problem or issue with vessels in Bedwell Bay 9 

Comments and suggestions for Council to not implement a DAA 7 

Questions and concerns regarding the cost to implement/administer the 
DAA 6 

Interest and concern regarding limited Belcarra resources for 
monitoring/enforcement (personnel, equipment, technology) 4 

Interest and concerns for Belcarra assuming risk/liability of the DAA 3 

Questions and concerns regarding the cost to maintain/enforce the DAA 3 

Questions related to the fee recovery structure 2 

Questions and concerns related to the cost of removing derelict vessels 2 

Comments or suggestions to have Vancouver Fraser Port Authority 
monitor the issue 2 

Question regarding the cost-benefit ratio of implementing a DAA 1 

Suggestion to work with Transport Canada and receive more 
information regarding The Wrecked, Abandoned or Hazardous Vessels Act 
(WAHVA, Bill C-64) 

1 

Suggestion to work with a local contractor to address derelict vessels 1 

Suggestion to revisit DAA in the future if a problem arises 1 

 
 
  

https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/annualstatutes/2019_1/page-1.html
https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/annualstatutes/2019_1/page-1.html


Village of Belcarra – Potential Designated Anchorage Area 
Engagement Summary Report 

 

  

 

11 

4. Perception of the number of vessels in Bedwell Bay (summer/winter months) 

Respondents were asked their opinion about perceived changes in the number of vessels in 
Bedwell Bay during summer and winter months. As the figures below illustrate, just under half of 
respondents (45%) believe that the number of vessels has not changed in summer months, 
whereas 40% believe the number has increased during winter months. 

 

    
      Figure 4       Figure 5 

 

 

Respondents were asked if they have a view of Bedwell Bay from their property. Over  
two-thirds of respondents (68%) have a view of Bedwell Bay.  

 
     Figure 7 

  



 
 

  
 

12 

 

Participant Demographics  

Residency 

5. Respondents were asked if they lived in Belcarra and if they were a year-round or seasonal 
resident. All respondents live in Belcarra and 91 per cent are year-round residents.  

    
      Figure 8      Figure 9 

 

Boat ownership/docking 

6. Respondents were asked to indicate if they own a boat located in Bedwell Bay, and if so, do 
they have a private dock or are they part of a Group Wharfage Society.  

   
    Figure 10       Figure 11 

It is noted that of the 59% of respondents who own a boat in Bedwell Bay, all but one owns a 
private dock or is part of a Group Wharfage Society. 

  



Village of Belcarra – Potential Designated Anchorage Area 
Engagement Summary Report 

 

  

 

13 

Method of Notification 

7. Respondents were asked how they learned about the Designated Anchorage Area initiative. 
Half of the respondents had learned about the DAA initiative through more than one form of 
notification. 

 
         Figure 11 

 
4 NEXT STEPS  

Council will consider comments received during the engagement period, along with financial, 
environmental and bylaw considerations. Results of the engagement, as well as any updates 
related to the DAA will be communicated through Council Reports and Agendas. 

For more information: 
Visit: www.belcarra.ca (Search: Designated Anchorage Area) 
Email: l.dysart@belcarra.ca   
Call: 604-937-4100 

  

mailto:l.dysart@belcarra.ca


 
 

  
 

14 

 

APPENDIX A: NOTIFICATION MATERIALS 

Appendix A (1) – Mail Drop Notice to Residents & Bus Stop Poster  



 

  
 

September 16, 2019 
Please join us… 
The Village of Belcarra Council is considering a License Agreement with the Vancouver Fraser 
Port Authority to establish a geographic area in Bedwell Bay that would make the Village 
responsible for the management and control of anchored boats.   
 
A Public Information Meeting is being held to seek community input, before moving forward, 
on a decision whether to enter into a Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) agreement with the 
Vancouver Fraser Port Authority for Bedwell Bay.  
 
Information will be shared at the meeting about the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority Designated 
Anchorage Area Initiative. An agreement would establish the designated geographic area of the 
DAA. The municipality would assume responsibility for the management and control of anchored 
boats, including notification, monitoring, permit fee collection, and enforcement. Discussion will 
take place on the advantages / disadvantages of implementing a Designated Anchorage Area in 
Bedwell Bay. 
 
Numerous aspects must be considered when developing a plan for a DAA, including: 

• Size and location of the Designated Anchorage Area 
• Length of stay / anchorage duration 
• Fees and charges 
• Enforcement 
• Responsibility of derelict boat disposal 

 
Over the past two years, the Village of Belcarra has experienced a marked increase in boats 
anchored in Bedwell Bay.  Bedwell Bay has long been a charted anchorage area, but without a 
DAA, the Village has no recourse for limiting length of stay and / or enforcing environmental 
requirements. 
 
A feedback form will be provided to gather information from residents.  The form will be posted 
on the Village website following the meeting.  Feedback will be accepted by email at 
admin@belcarra.ca  
 
For more information on the proposed Designated Anchorage Area, please visit the Village 
website at www.belcarra.ca  

Public Information Meeting Details: 
Date:  Thursday, October 3, 2019 
Time:  7:00 pm to 9:00 pm 
Place:   Belcarra Village Hall 
  4084 Bedwell Bay Road 
             Belcarra, BC 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Public Information Meeting – Designated Anchorage Area 

Thursday, October 3, 2019 
7:00 pm 

Village Hall 
 

mailto:admin@belcarra.ca
mailto:admin@belcarra.ca
http://www.belcarra.ca/
http://www.belcarra.ca/
prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Appendix A (1)



Village of Belcarra – Potential Designated Anchorage Area 
Engagement Summary Report 

 

  

 

15 

APPENDIX B: ENGAGEMENT MATERIALS 

Appendix B (1) – PowerPoint Presentation from Designated Anchorage Area Public Information       
  Meeting held October 3, 2019 

Appendix B (2) – Potential Designated Anchorage Area Community Information Handout 

Appendix B (3) – Designated Anchorage Area Feedback Form 

 



10/25/19

1

Village of Belcarra
Proposed Designated Anchorage Area
Community Information Meeting – October 3, 2019

1

BEDWELL BAY

BEDWELL BAY

INDIAN ARM

2

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Appendix B (1)

prichardson
Typewritten Text
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text



10/25/19

2

EXISITING POLICY

• Bedwell Bay is under federal jurisdiction and falls under 
Vancouver Fraser Port Authority’s responsibility to 
manage

• Vessels have the right to navigate and anchor within the 
area 

• Transport Canada can fine owners who abandon vessels
• Vancouver Fraser Port Authority works with other federal 

agencies to manage Vessels of Interest inventory

3

ABOUT DESIGNATED ANCHORAGE AREAS

• A Designated Anchorage 
Area allows a municipality 
to create and enforce 
anchorage bylaws within a 
designated area; subject 
to existing rights and laws

• Anything that happens 
within the area becomes 
municipal responsibility

4



10/25/19

3

WHY IMPLEMENT A 
DESIGNATED ANCHORAGE AREA?

• Respond to concerns 
from residents

• Local authority to 
manage vessels in 
Bedwell Bay
o Long term 

anchorage 
o Live-aboards
o Derelict boats

5

CONSIDERATIONS

• Responsibility for:
o Environmental management
o Monitoring safe anchorage
o Management and disposal of wrecked or derelict 

vessels
o Ensuring recreational access

6



10/25/19

4

CONSIDERATIONS

OPPORTUNITIES
• Timely response
• Local control over program 

and fees
• Full or partial cost recovery
• Potential for collaborative 

management

CHALLENGES
• Initial setup costs
• Ongoing operational 

costs
• No waste facilities
• Risk of high and 

unrecoverable cost to 
dispose of derelict 
boats

7

POTENTIAL EXTENT

BEDWELL
BAY

DEEP 
COVE

8



10/25/19

5

OPTION 1

9

OPTION 2

10



10/25/19

6

YOUR FEEDBACK

• Is there a problem to 
address?

• Community interest in 
establishing?

• Factors that influence your 
opinion?

• Support for user fees to help 
pay for program costs?

• Other questions or concerns

11

Thank You

Feedback will be accepted between October 3 – October 11, 2019 

Please fill out a feedback form before you go - OR
• Drop-off form at Belcarra Village Hall during office hours, 

Mon-Fri, 9 am – 4 pm 
• Or email to: admin@belcarra.ca

12

mailto:admin@belcarra.ca
prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text



 
The Village of Belcarra Council is considering a License Agreement with the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority to establish 
a Designated Anchorage Area – a geographic area within Bedwell Bay where the Village would have authority to manage 
and control anchored vessels. 

• Belcarra currently has no legal responsibility for vessels in Bedwell Bay. Management of Bedwell Bay is primarily a 
federal responsibility. 

• Port Moody established a Designated Anchor Area in 2016 and District of North Vancouver is contemplating one for 
Deep Cove. 

• Belcarra is considering a Designated Anchor Area in Bedwell Bay to manage overnight use, and prevent inflow of 
unlicensed live-aboard and derelict vessels from other areas. The Village is also responding to concerns expressed 
by some residents about noise, pollution, potential crime and environmental risk and clean-up costs. 

• Council invites residents to provide feedback on your current experience and provide input on a potential Designated 
Anchorage Area, for which the Village would assume responsibility, liability and costs to maintain. 

• If the Village were to establish a Designated Anchorage Area, guidelines would need to be established for the 
maximum number of vessels permitted to remain anchored overnight, length of stay limits, fees, and collection. The 
Village would also have to provide appropriate notice and be responsible for costs associated with monitoring and 
enforcement. These guidelines and processes may also affect local residents. 

• The Village is committed to the protection of the environment and the health and safety for residents and visitors. 
 

 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Potential Designated Anchorage Area 
Community Information Handout 

OPPORTUNITIES: 
• Timely response to emerging 

issues. 
• Control over lease agreement, 

management, monitoring, fee 
structure, vessel condition 
standards, etc.  

• Anticipated fee recovery during 
peak-season. 

• Possible collaboration with 
District of North Vancouver for 
management. 

CHALLENGES: 
• Startup costs approximately 

$40,000. 
• Ongoing operational costs 

depending on size of area.  
• Must meet Vancouver Fraser 

Port Authority and Transport 
Canada requirements. 

• Bedwell Bay has no waste pump-
out facilities; may require 
additional investment.  

• Management and removal costs 
for derelict vessels becomes 
Village responsibility.  

Please provide your feedback by October 11, 2019. Submit by email to admin@belcarra.ca or drop-off at 
Belcarra Village Hall during office hours, Monday to Friday, 9 a.m. to 4 p.m.  

Deep 
Cove 

Bedwell 
Bay 

Two potential Designated Anchorage Areas are under consideration for Bedwell Bay 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Appendix B (2)

prichardson
Typewritten Text



 1 

 
The Village of Belcarra Council is considering a License Agreement with the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority to 
establish a Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) - a geographic area within Bedwell Bay where the Village would 
be responsible for the management and control of anchored boats. 

You are invited to provide feedback by completing this form, which you may return in one of the following ways: 
 

In person: Public Information Meeting at Belcarra Village Hall  
4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC 
Thursday, October 3, 2019  
7 pm – 9 pm 
 

By email:  admin@belcarra.ca 

Drop off:  Drop-off at Belcarra Village Hall during office hours, Monday to Friday,  
9 am – 4 pm 

 
Feedback will be accepted between October 3 – October 11, 2019. A summary of the results will be posted to 
the Village website when work is complete. 
 
1: Do you live in Belcarra? 

☐ Yes 
☐ No 

 
2: If yes, are you a:  

☐  Year-round resident of Belcarra 
☐  Seasonal resident of Belcarra 

 
3: Do you own a boat that is located in Bedwell Bay? 

☐ Yes 
☐ No 

 
4: Do you have a private dock? 

☐ Yes 
☐ No 
☐ No, but I am part of a Group Wharfage Society 

 
5: Do you view Bedwell Bay from your property?  

☐ Yes 
☐ No 

 
6: In your opinion, has the number of boats in Bedwell Bay in the summer months (May – September): 

☐ Increased 
☐ Decreased 
☐ About the same 
☐ No answer 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) 
Feedback Form 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Appendix B (3)



 2 

 
7: In your opinion, has the number of boats in Bedwell Bay in the winter months (October – April): 

☐ Increased 
☐ Decreased 
☐ About the same 
☐ No answer 

 
8: Which best describes your opinion of the Village of Belcarra implementing a DAA? 

☐ Strongly agree 
☐ Agree 
☐ Neutral 
☐ Disagree 
☐ Strongly disagree 

 
9: There are a number of considerations in developing a DAA plan, including size and location, length of stay, 

permit fees, monitoring and enforcement. What factors influence your opinion the most? 
 

 

 

 

 
10:  Fees would be necessary for monitoring and enforcement of the DAA. Do you support a cost recovery fee, 

which would apply to all boats anchored in the DAA?  
☐ Yes 
☐ No 

 
11: What questions or suggestions do you have for Council and staff in planning a DAA?  
 

 

 

 

 
12: How did you learn about the Designated Anchorage Area initiative? 

☐ Email notification 
☐ Public notice delivered to my home 
� Information poster 
☐ At the Public Information Meeting 
� Village of Belcarra website 
� Word of mouth 

 

Thank you for providing your feedback. 
Please complete and return your feedback form on or before October 11, 2019. 

prichardson
Typewritten Text



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 10 28\2019 10 28 SVFD Request for Belcarra 
Cargo Trailer.docx 
 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: October 28, 2019     
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department Request for Belcarra Cargo Trailer  
 
 
Recommendation 
That the report dated October 28, 2019, regarding the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) 
request for the donation of the Cargo Trailer be received for information; and 
That discussions continue with SVFD regarding this request.  
Purpose 
To advise Council of the request from the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) for the 
donation of the Belcarra Cargo Trailer.   
Background 
SVFD has requested consideration be given to donating or selling the Belcarra Cargo Trailer to 
the Department for $1.00.  SVFD would use the Cargo Trailer in support of their efforts in 
Wildland Interface Firefighting preparedness.  To purchase a similar Cargo Trailer, the 
Department would be required to use funds that are earmarked for a new fire truck.   
Chief Sharpe will view the Cargo Trailer to ensure that the Cargo Trailer would meet the needs 
of the SVFD.   
SVFD has a significant amount of equipment that must be loaded onto the fire trucks in the event 
of Interface fire.  In an emergency, this becomes a time consuming and cumbersome activity 
which slows down their ability to respond.  The addition of the Cargo Trailer would mean that 
the Department would be ready to move quickly to an event, enhancing the SVFD ability to save 
homes.   
The Cargo Trailer, that is parked in the Belcarra Public Works yard, was purchased by the 
Village in 2014 for approximately $6,000. with a view to using it for Emergency Preparedness 
purposes.  The Cargo Trailer has never been used.  Public Works does not have the ability to tow 
the Cargo Trailer safely.  Funds were not available to properly stock the Cargo Trailer.   
Over time, discussion has taken place regarding selling the Cargo Trailer; however, it was never 
put up for sale. Public Works have advised that they do not have any use for the Cargo Trailer.   
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5 a)







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5 b)











prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11




	That the “2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report”, be received for  information; and
	That the “2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report”, be received for  information; and
	That the expenditure exceptions to Policy 195 Financial Plan-Amendment,  Monitoring & Control, as detailed in the section in this Report titled “Compliance  with Policy 195”, be approved.
	That the expenditure exceptions to Policy 195 Financial Plan-Amendment,  Monitoring & Control, as detailed in the section in this Report titled “Compliance  with Policy 195”, be approved.
	5.1 2019  10 28 N. Gomerich - 3Q Variance Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date:   October 28, 2019
	Date:   October 28, 2019
	From:  Nancy Gomerich, BBA, CPA-CA, NG Consulting
	From:  Nancy Gomerich, BBA, CPA-CA, NG Consulting
	Subject: 2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report
	Subject: 2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:
	That the “2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report”, be received for information; and
	That the “2019 Third Quarter Financial Forecast Report”, be received for information; and
	That the expenditure exceptions to Policy 195 Financial Plan-Amendment, Monitoring & Control, as detailed in the section in this Report titled “Compliance with Policy 195”, be approved.
	That the expenditure exceptions to Policy 195 Financial Plan-Amendment, Monitoring & Control, as detailed in the section in this Report titled “Compliance with Policy 195”, be approved.
	Purpose:
	Purpose:
	To provide a forecast of 2019 revenue and expenses and analysis of related budget variances.
	To provide a forecast of 2019 revenue and expenses and analysis of related budget variances.
	Background:
	Background:
	A requirement of Financial Policy 195 Financial Plan-Amendment, Monitoring & Control is the preparation of a mid year and third quarter report that compares budgeted revenues and expenses against forecasted actuals.  In 2019 the mid year report was no...
	A requirement of Financial Policy 195 Financial Plan-Amendment, Monitoring & Control is the preparation of a mid year and third quarter report that compares budgeted revenues and expenses against forecasted actuals.  In 2019 the mid year report was no...
	Compliance with Policy 195
	Compliance with Policy 195
	Policy 195* provides staff with the ability to manage each Funds operating budget to the “bottom-line” (i.e. to budgeted net expenses or revenues), and to exceed project and/or capital budgets within specified limitations.  All exceptions to the requi...
	Policy 195* provides staff with the ability to manage each Funds operating budget to the “bottom-line” (i.e. to budgeted net expenses or revenues), and to exceed project and/or capital budgets within specified limitations.  All exceptions to the requi...
	Required approvals from Council are requested during the year via separate Report(s) from staff, or as part of the mid-year and/or third quarter, Financial Forecast Reports.
	Required approvals from Council are requested during the year via separate Report(s) from staff, or as part of the mid-year and/or third quarter, Financial Forecast Reports.
	The requirements of Policy 195 have, or are forecast to be met, with the following exceptions:
	The requirements of Policy 195 have, or are forecast to be met, with the following exceptions:
	 Water Operating Budget – The net operating budget is forecast to be $2,669 over-budget; the maximum permitted without Council approval is $0.
	 Water Operating Budget – The net operating budget is forecast to be $2,669 over-budget; the maximum permitted without Council approval is $0.
	 WARD Operating Budget – The net operating budget is forecast to be $8,642 over-budget; the maximum permitted without Council approval is $0
	 WARD Operating Budget – The net operating budget is forecast to be $8,642 over-budget; the maximum permitted without Council approval is $0
	 PW Trailer Capital – Project is anticipated to be over-budget by $11,350; the maximum permitted without Council approval is $10,000.
	 PW Trailer Capital – Project is anticipated to be over-budget by $11,350; the maximum permitted without Council approval is $10,000.
	Note that although the General Fund is forecast to be over-budget, it is entirely due to capital grants which are not included in the “bottom-line” calculation (i.e. once excluded, the General Fund is actually forecast to be have a positive budget var...
	Note that although the General Fund is forecast to be over-budget, it is entirely due to capital grants which are not included in the “bottom-line” calculation (i.e. once excluded, the General Fund is actually forecast to be have a positive budget var...
	* Summary of the main sections of Policy 195, for reference:
	* Summary of the main sections of Policy 195, for reference:
	Attachments:
	Attachments:
	A – Forecast 2019 Statement of Operations
	A – Forecast 2019 Statement of Operations
	B – Forecast 2019 Statement of Operations - Variance Explanations – Individual Funds
	B – Forecast 2019 Statement of Operations - Variance Explanations – Individual Funds
	C – Forecast 2019 Statement of Capital Expenditures - Variance Explanations
	C – Forecast 2019 Statement of Capital Expenditures - Variance Explanations
	ATTACHMENT A – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
	ATTACHMENT A – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
	See explanation of variances on individual fund Statements (Attachment B).
	See explanation of variances on individual fund Statements (Attachment B).
	ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – GENERAL FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS
	ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – GENERAL FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS
	ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – WATER FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS
	ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – WATER FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS
	ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – WATER FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS
	ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – WATER FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS
	ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – WARD FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS
	ATTACHMENT B – FORECAST 2019 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – WARD FUND – VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS
	ATTACHMENT C – 2019 FORECAST STATEMENT OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
	ATTACHMENT C – 2019 FORECAST STATEMENT OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
	ATTACHMENT C – 2019 FORECAST STATEMENT OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

	5.3 2019 10 28 Short Term Rentals (STR) Implementation Options.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: October 28, 2019
	Date: October 28, 2019
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:
	Purpose:
	Purpose:
	To outline options for staff to proceed with regulating Short Term Rentals. The following 2 options are presented for Council consideration.
	To outline options for staff to proceed with regulating Short Term Rentals. The following 2 options are presented for Council consideration.

	5.4 2019 10 28 Belcarra DAA_Engagement Summary Report.pdf
	Engagement Summary Report
	1 Overview
	1.1 ABOUT THE PROPOSED DESIGNATED AREA
	1.2 ABOUT THIS REPORT

	2 Engagement Process
	2.1 PURPOSE
	2.2 NOTIFICATION
	2.3 ENGAGEMENT METHODS
	2.3.1 Public Information Meeting
	2.3.2 Feedback Questionnaire

	2.4 PARTICIPATION

	3 Summary of Input
	3.1 KEY THEMES
	3.2 PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETING SUMMARY
	3.3 FEEDBACK QUESTIONNAIRE RESULTS

	4 Next Steps
	APPENDIX A: NOTIFICATION MATERIALS
	APPENDIX B: ENGAGEMENT MATERIALS

	5.5 2019 10 28 SVFD Request for Belcarra Cargo Trailer.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: October 28, 2019
	Date: October 28, 2019
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department Request for Belcarra Cargo Trailer
	Subject: Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department Request for Belcarra Cargo Trailer
	Recommendation
	Recommendation
	Purpose
	Purpose
	To advise Council of the request from the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) for the donation of the Belcarra Cargo Trailer.
	To advise Council of the request from the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) for the donation of the Belcarra Cargo Trailer.
	Background
	Background
	SVFD has requested consideration be given to donating or selling the Belcarra Cargo Trailer to the Department for $1.00.  SVFD would use the Cargo Trailer in support of their efforts in Wildland Interface Firefighting preparedness.  To purchase a simi...
	SVFD has requested consideration be given to donating or selling the Belcarra Cargo Trailer to the Department for $1.00.  SVFD would use the Cargo Trailer in support of their efforts in Wildland Interface Firefighting preparedness.  To purchase a simi...
	Chief Sharpe will view the Cargo Trailer to ensure that the Cargo Trailer would meet the needs of the SVFD.
	Chief Sharpe will view the Cargo Trailer to ensure that the Cargo Trailer would meet the needs of the SVFD.
	SVFD has a significant amount of equipment that must be loaded onto the fire trucks in the event of Interface fire.  In an emergency, this becomes a time consuming and cumbersome activity which slows down their ability to respond.  The addition of the...
	SVFD has a significant amount of equipment that must be loaded onto the fire trucks in the event of Interface fire.  In an emergency, this becomes a time consuming and cumbersome activity which slows down their ability to respond.  The addition of the...
	The Cargo Trailer, that is parked in the Belcarra Public Works yard, was purchased by the Village in 2014 for approximately $6,000. with a view to using it for Emergency Preparedness purposes.  The Cargo Trailer has never been used.  Public Works does...
	The Cargo Trailer, that is parked in the Belcarra Public Works yard, was purchased by the Village in 2014 for approximately $6,000. with a view to using it for Emergency Preparedness purposes.  The Cargo Trailer has never been used.  Public Works does...
	Over time, discussion has taken place regarding selling the Cargo Trailer; however, it was never put up for sale. Public Works have advised that they do not have any use for the Cargo Trailer.
	Over time, discussion has taken place regarding selling the Cargo Trailer; however, it was never put up for sale. Public Works have advised that they do not have any use for the Cargo Trailer.

	3.1 2019 09 30 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Certified Correct:




